
Village of Geneseo        November 19, 2008 
Planning Board        Regular Meeting 
 
Members Present:    Other Village Representatives Present: 
Matthew Griffo, Chair   Code Enforcement Officer Ron Maxwell 
Robert Freiburger     
Charles Nesbitt     
Susan Richardson      
Dori Farthing 
   
1.  Meeting Opened: 
 Chair Griffo opened the meeting at 3:52PM, as all members were present along with the Code 
Enforcement Officer.   
 
2.  Meeting Minutes: 

The October 22, 2008 meeting minutes were reviewed.  S. Richardson moved to approve the 
minutes as amended.  R. Freiburger seconded the motion.  The motion passed with ayes from M. 
Griffo, R. Freiburger, C. Nesbitt, S. Richardson and D. Farthing.  
 
3.  Code Enforcement Report: 
 October 2008: Building Permits: 5 Zoning/Sign Permits:  1 
 The Board noticed that William “Butch” Curry Jr. had renewed a building permit for a garage.  
CEO Maxwell stated that this would be the last time he could renew and then he would have to start 
from scratch.   
 S. Richardson asked about the new garage at 40 Oak Street that had received a variance from 
the Zoning Board of Appeals as she noticed there was some type of pipe coming out of its roof and she 
did not know if it was for a furnace or for plumbing.  CEO Maxwell stated that he would look into it.   
 R. Freiburger asked if the Board knew how the hearing went at the County in regards to the 
owners of the Temple Hill Bed and Breakfast applying for agricultural status for that parcel.  Secretary 
A. Mack stated that the Mayor had attended the hearing, but she did not have any details.  Chair Griffo 
asked what the advantage would be to having a parcel classified as an agricultural one.  CEO Maxwell 
stated that it would lower one’s assessment.  Chair Griffo asked if it would prevent any structures 
being built on the parcel.  CEO Maxwell said that it would not. 
 S. Richardson asked about the Waring Property on Lakeville Road, across from the Kwik Fill.  
CEO Maxwell stated that a 30’ X 30’ section of the parcel has not yet passed for contamination.   
 R. Freiburger asked what the status of the Nexgen Project was on the vacant lot next to 
Wal*Mart.  CEO Maxwell stated that a realtor had called him in regards to a parcel next to Wal*Mart 
but the realtor never specifically stated what parcel they were referring to.  CEO Maxwell stated that 
he believes they have sent the project out to bid at least five times with no results for the amount of 
money they want to spend. 
 CEO Maxwell stated on a side note that the Lowe’s project is still a go for the Town of 
Geneseo and he will soon be receiving blue prints to review.   
 Chair Griffo stated that Muddy Waters coffee shop appeared before the Zoning Board of 
Appeals on Tuesday afternoon, November 18th and were granted their special use permit for an 
eating/drinking establishment.  CEO Maxwell stated that the Zoning Board took Chair Griffo’s letter 
under advisement and within their approvals they did state that if at any point in the future Mr. Kane 
decided to sell alcohol, he would have to reapply for the special use permit.   
 
4.  Sign Grant: 

At this time, Chair Griffo asked R. Freiburger if he would act as Chair for the discussion on the 
sign grant as Chair Griffo is the sign maker.  R. Freiburger accepted.   



 M. Griffo presented the Board with a colored rendering of the sign for Canal Town Country 
Store.  The Canal Town Country Store will be opening a store at 126 Main Street.  Acting Chair 
Freiburger stated that the sign is 18” X 84” or  
10.5 square feet in size and it did meet the Village’s Zoning/Sign ordinance as a Zoning/Sign Permit 
had been issued by the Code Enforcement Office on November 14th.   

S. Richardson asked if the yellowish color that appeared on the colored renderings represented 
gold leaf.  M. Griffo stated that that was correct.  C. Nesbitt wondered why the store was being called 
Canal Town.  M. Griffo stated that he did not know, but that the store would be selling tobacco 
products and jewelry.   

M. Griffo stated that he has supplied the Board with four different colored renderings and asked 
them which they preferred.  The Board agreed that the first one at the top was too plain but liked the 
remaining three.  D. Farthing stated that she personally likes the outline around the letters.  She also 
stated that she has been looking at the signage around the Village and prefers the decorative ones.   

S. Richardson asked if the sign would be lighted.  M. Griffo stated that he was not asked to 
supply lighting for the sign.   

With no further discussion S. Richardson moved to approve the sign grant application for Canal 
Town Country Store, 126 Main Street.  The sign is one sided, 10.5 square feet, high-density urethane 
with gold leaf.  The sign has been estimated at $1296.00.  As per sign grant guidelines, they are asking 
for 1/2 the cost of the sign up to $1000.00 from the Village Board of Trustees.  C. Nesbitt seconded the 
motion and with no further discussion the motion passed with ayes from  
R. Freiburger, C. Nesbitt, S. Richardson and D. Farthing.  M. Griffo abstained.   
 At this time, M. Griffo took over for Acting Chair Freiburger.  S. Richardson asked if a 
license was required to sell cigars/tobacco products.  Chair Griffo stated that the Village does not issue 
anything like this, but a permit has to be issued by the State and at this time, they are awaiting their 
permit from the State.   

 
5.  Other Business: 
 S. Richardson stated that she had attended the Genesee/Fingerlakes Regional Planning 
Council’s fall workshop on the 14th. 
  
6.  Meeting Closed: 

With no further discussion, C. Nesbitt moved to close the meeting at 4:30PM with second from 
D. Farthing.  The motion passed with ayes from M. Griffo,  
R. Freiburger, C. Nesbitt, S. Richardson and D. Farthing.   
 
Aprile S. Mack, Secretary 


